
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

MARTIN J. WALSH, SECRETARY OF LABOR, 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, 

: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 
: 

Plaintiff, 

v. Civil Action No. 22-cv-0278 

LADY OF FATIMA HEALTH SERVICES, INC. 
d/b/a LADY OF FATIMA HEALTHCARE 
SERVICES and FATMATA TURRAY, 

Defendants. 

COMPLAINT 

Plaintiff, Martin J. Walsh, Secretary of Labor, United States Department of Labor 

(“Plaintiff”), brings this action to enjoin Lady of Fatima Health Services, Inc., a Pennsylvania 

corporation, d/b/a Lady of Fatima Healthcare Services, and Fatmata Turray, individually and as 

owner, officer, and manager of the aforementioned company, (collectively, “Defendants”), from 

violating the provisions of Sections 7, 11(c), 15(a)(2), and 15(a)(5) of the Fair Labor Standards Act 

of 1938, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 201, et seq. (“the Act”), and for a judgment against Defendants in 

the total amount of back wage compensation found by the Court to be due to any of the employees 

of Defendants pursuant to the Act and an equal amount due to the employees of Defendants in 

liquidated damages. 

1. Jurisdiction of this action is conferred upon the Court by Section 17 of the Act, 29

U.S.C. § 217, and by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1345. 

2. Defendant Lady of Fatima Healthcare, Inc. (“Lady of Fatima”) is a corporation duly

organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Lady of Fatima’s registered 
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address and principal place of business is 1335 Tabor Road, Suite 303, Philadelphia, PA 19141, 

within the jurisdiction of this Court. Lady of Fatima is engaged in a domestic homecare business 

operating out of this same location, within the jurisdiction of this Court.  

3. Defendant Fatmata Turray is the owner and a manager of Lady of Fatima. Ms. 

Turray directed employment practices and has directly or indirectly acted in the interest of Lady of 

Fatima in relation to its employees at all relevant times herein, including interviewing, hiring, and 

setting pay rates for employees, and setting the conditions of employment for employees at 1335 

Tabor Road, Suite 303, Philadelphia, PA 19141.  

4. Defendants employ persons in domestic service for profit, which affects commerce 

per Section 2(a)(5) of the Act. Lady of Fatima employees employed as direct care workers 

(“DCWs”) or caregivers provide in-home care services to Lady of Fatima’s clients.  

5. Defendants willfully violated the provisions of Sections 7 and 15(a)(2) of the Act by 

employing their employees in an enterprise engaged in commerce or handling goods or materials 

that have been moved in or produced for commerce for workweeks longer that those prescribed in 

Section 7 of the Act without compensating said employees for employment in excess of the 

prescribed hours at rates not less than one and one-half times their regular rates. Therefore, 

Defendants are liable for the payment of unpaid overtime compensation and an equal amount of 

liquidated damages under Section 16(c) of the Act.  

6. During the time period from at least March 24, 2017 through at least May 1, 2019, 

Defendants failed to compensate certain of their employees employed as direct care workers 

(“DCWs”) or caregivers (collectively, “employees”) who worked over 40 hours in a workweek at 

rates not less than one and one-half times their regular rates. During this time period, Defendants 

misclassified some direct care workers as independent contractors and paid them straight time for 

all hours worked, including overtime hours.  These employees regularly worked over 40 hours in a 

workweek. 
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7. Defendants also employed other direct care workers who worked for more than one 

client in a single workweek. These employees frequently worked over 40 hours per workweek.  

Defendants failed to combine hours that those employees worked during the week when they 

worked for multiple clients in the same week. For instance, an employee who worked 38 hours in a 

week for one client and 15 hours in the same week for another client received 53 hours of wages at 

the straight time rate, and did not receive overtime premium pay for the 13 hours of overtime work. 

8. Defendants knew of or recklessly disregarded their obligation to pay their employees 

one and one-half their regular rates for hours worked in excess of forty per workweek.  Defendants 

specifically told certain employees that they would not receive overtime pay for overtime hours 

worked. During a previous investigation by Wage and Hour covering the period from March 26, 

2015 to March 23, 2017, Wage and Hour told Fatmata Turray and Lady of Fatima that the FLSA 

required them to pay overtime premiums to its employees who worked more than 40 hours per 

week. Wage and Hour also told Defendants that they were misclassifying some DCWs as 

independent contractors, and that these DCWs were actually employees covered by the FLSA and 

entitled to overtime premium pay.  Defendants nevertheless continued to pay certain employees 

straight time for overtime.  

9. Defendants violated the provisions of Sections 11(c) and 15(a)(5) of the Act in that 

Defendants failed to make, keep, and preserve adequate and accurate records of the weekly hours 

worked by their employees, including failing to maintain records of the weekly overtime hours 

worked by their employees, which they were required to maintain by the regulations issued and 

found at 29 C.F.R. Part 516.  

WHEREFORE, cause having been shown, the Secretary prays for judgment against 

Defendants providing the following relief: 

(1) For an injunction issued pursuant to Section 17 of the Act permanently enjoining and 

restraining Defendants, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and those persons in active 

Case 2:22-cv-00278-MSG   Document 1   Filed 01/21/22   Page 3 of 6

f 

 

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com. 

https://www.docketalarm.com/


4  

concert or participation with Defendants who receive actual notice of any such judgment, from 

violating the provisions of Sections 7, 11(c), 15(a)(2) and 15(a)(5) of the Act; 

(2) For judgment pursuant to Section 16(c) of the Act finding Defendants liable for 

unpaid overtime compensation due to certain of Defendants’ current and former employees listed in 

the attached Schedule A for the period from at least March 24, 2017 through at least May 1, 2019, 

and for an equal amount due to certain of Defendants’ current and former employees in liquidated 

damages. Additional amounts of back wages and liquidated damages may also be owed to certain 

current and former employees of Defendants listed in the attached Schedule A for violations 

continuing after May 1, 2019, and may be owed to certain current and former employees presently 

unknown to the Secretary for the period covered by this Complaint, who may be identified during 

this litigation and added to Schedule A;  

(3) For an injunction issued pursuant to Section 17 of the Act restraining Defendants, 

their officers, agents, employees, and those persons in active concert or participation with 

defendants, from withholding the amount of unpaid overtime compensation found due defendants’ 

employees;   

(4) In the event liquidated damages are not awarded, for an Order awarding prejudgment 

interest computed at the underpayment rate established by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 

26 U.S.C. § 6621. 

FURTHER, Plaintiff prays that this Honorable Court award costs in his favor, and an order 

granting such other and further relief as may be necessary and appropriate.  
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Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Mailing Address:  
 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Office of the Regional Solicitor 
1835 Market Street 
Mailstop SOL/22 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 
 
(215) 861-5128 (voice) 
(215) 861-5162 (fax) 
 
luby.andrea@dol.gov 
 
Date: January 3, 2022 

 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
 
Seema Nanda 
Solicitor of Labor 
 
Oscar L. Hampton III 
Regional Solicitor 
 
/s/ Andrea Luby 
By: Andrea Luby 
PA ID # 321609 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 

Case 2:22-cv-00278-MSG   Document 1   Filed 01/21/22   Page 5 of 6

f 

 

Find authenticated court documents without watermarks at docketalarm.com. 

https://www.docketalarm.com/


Real-Time Litigation Alerts
	� Keep your litigation team up-to-date with real-time  

alerts and advanced team management tools built for  
the enterprise, all while greatly reducing PACER spend.

	� Our comprehensive service means we can handle Federal, 
State, and Administrative courts across the country.

Advanced Docket Research
	� With over 230 million records, Docket Alarm’s cloud-native 

docket research platform finds what other services can’t. 
Coverage includes Federal, State, plus PTAB, TTAB, ITC  
and NLRB decisions, all in one place.

	� Identify arguments that have been successful in the past 
with full text, pinpoint searching. Link to case law cited  
within any court document via Fastcase.

Analytics At Your Fingertips
	� Learn what happened the last time a particular judge,  

opposing counsel or company faced cases similar to yours.

	� Advanced out-of-the-box PTAB and TTAB analytics are  
always at your fingertips.

Docket Alarm provides insights to develop a more  

informed litigation strategy and the peace of mind of 

knowing you’re on top of things.

Explore Litigation 
Insights

®

WHAT WILL YOU BUILD?  |  sales@docketalarm.com  |  1-866-77-FASTCASE

API
Docket Alarm offers a powerful API 
(application programming inter-
face) to developers that want to 
integrate case filings into their apps.

LAW FIRMS
Build custom dashboards for your 
attorneys and clients with live data 
direct from the court.

Automate many repetitive legal  
tasks like conflict checks, document 
management, and marketing.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Litigation and bankruptcy checks 
for companies and debtors.

E-DISCOVERY AND  
LEGAL VENDORS
Sync your system to PACER to  
automate legal marketing.


